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May 26, 2016

Thomas Mooney
Planning and Zoning Director
City of Miami Beach
1700 Convention Center Drive
Miami Beach, FL 33131

Re: Letter of Intent – 3865 Indian Creek Drive (Venezia Hotel)
Final Submittal – Historic Preservation Board

Dear Mr. Mooney:

On behalf of Venezia Hotel LLC (the "Applicant"), we submit this application for the property
located at 3865 Indian Creek Drive (the "Property").The Property is improved with a contributing
historic structure, historically known as the Malabo Apartment Hotel and is located within the
Collins Waterfront Historic District.

Applicant is restoring the historic building and making significant investments to reinvigorate
the building. Most of the approvals for the project are being handled administratively and work is
ongoing, including repairs of the lobby ceilings and other areas which will be repaired and restored.

The items covered in this application include the following: (1) proposed removal of an
existing window on the west façade to be replaced by a new exterior door; and (2) a variance for
existing room sizes.

Overview

The Property is located to the east of Indian Creek Drive between 38th and 39th Street and
is approximately 11,000 square feet. The Property is improved with a three-story building
containing 50 units, and has historically been utilized as a hotel and apartment building.

The Property is zoned RM-2 and is improved with a contributing historic structure, located
within the Collins Waterfront Historic District.

Neisen O. Kasdin

Akerman LLP
Three Brickell City Centre

98 Southeast Seventh Street
Suite 1100

Miami, FL 33131
Tel: 305.374.5600

Fax: 305.374.5095
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Exterior Renovation: Window to Door

Applicant proposes to remove an existing window on the western façade of the building, to
be replaced by a new exterior door. The existing window and ventilation opening are to be
removed, as depicted in sheet A-3.00 of the enclosed plans. The new door will be made of
aluminum with a clear anodized aluminum finish to match the existing doors, as depicted in sheet
A.301 of the enclosed plans. The glass will be clear, to match the existing glass.

The proposed change will allow for a better flow of foot-traffic within the hotel. Currently
there is one door along the western façade of the hotel. This door will be primarily used to access
the main lobby area for guests that are checking in to the hotel. The new door will provide a
separate access point from the patio to the bar/food and beverage area. The two (2) doors will
serve as distinct access points for separate areas and uses on the main floor, and will generally
minimize congestion.

The new door will only slightly modify the exterior of the building and will match the existing
improvements to preserve and enhance the historic character of the hotel.

Room Size Variance

The building records show that the building has historically been utilized as a hotel and
apartment building. However, in practice, the building has been utilized primarily as a hotel.

In RM-2 contributing hotel structures located within a local historic district are permitted to
be renovated and retain existing room configuration and sizes of 200 square feet or larger. Here,
because there are no clear city records establishing that the entire building was consistently used
as a hotel, we are required to request a variance from the following minimum unit size standards:
85%: 335 square feet ("SF") or greater; 15%: 300-355 SF. Here, of the 50 existing hotel units,
56% of the units are over 335 SF (28 units), 12% of the units are between 300-335 SF (6 units),
and 32% of the units are between 200-300 SF (16 units). Therefore, we submit this variance from
the RM-2 minimum unit sizes for hotel units.

Section 118-353(d) of the City's Zoning Code establishes seven (7) criteria by which
requests for variances are evaluated. These criteria are listed below in bold and underline text, with
our response following each criteria in plain text.

The City Charter, Subpart B, Article I, Sec. 2 also says, "Where there are practical
difficulties or unnecessary hardships in the way of carrying out the strict letter of said Zoning
Ordinance, the Board of Adjustment shall have the power in passing upon appeals, to vary or
modify any regulations or provisions of such ordinance relating to the use, construction, or
alteration of buildings or structures, or the use of land, so that the spirit of the Zoning Ordinance
shall be observed, public safety and welfare secured, and substantial justice done." We believe
our responses below will show that there are practical difficulties and unnecessary hardships
associated with our request for a variance.
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1. Special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land, structure,
or building involved and which are not applicable to other lands, structures, or
buildings in the same zoning district.

The property is unique because it is a contributing structure located within a historic
district, with rooms historically sized below the current requirements. Imposing the current
code requirements for minimum room size would create a practical hardship because
Applicant would be required to conduct significant reconfiguration and reconstruction of
the entire building.

2. The special conditions and circumstances do not result from the action of the
applicant.

Applicant wishes to maintain the historic conditions of the building. Applicants will not
increase the number of units in the building and all units are larger than 200 square feet.

3. Granting the variance requested will not confer on the applicant any special privilege
that is denied by these land development regulations to other lands, buildings, or
structures in the same zoning district.

The existing condition is unique to the Property and granting the variance would not confer
special privileges by permitting the Applicant to maintain the existing rooms.

4. Literal interpretation of the provisions of these land development regulations would
deprive the applicant of rights commonly enjoyed by other properties in the same
zoning district under the terms of these land development regulations and would work
unnecessary and undue hardship on the applicant.

Literal interpretation of the provisions would result in unnecessary and undue hardship, as
the Applicant would be required to reconfigure the entire building, which would entail
significant structural, electrical, plumbing and other significant modifications. Such changes
could be detrimental to the preservation of the historic building.

5. The variance granted is the minimum variance that will make possible the reasonable
use of the land, building or structure.

Applicant is not proposing to add any units and the variance is the minimum variance that
will make possible the reasonable use of the historic building. If required to reconfigure the
building, significant structural changes will be required and it will be difficult to preserve
certain aspects of the historical building.



May 26, 2016
Page 4
__________________________

{38334113;1}

6. The granting of the variance will be in harmony with the general intent and purpose of
these land development regulations and that such variance will not be injurious to the
area involved or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare.

The granting of the variance is in harmony with the general intent and purpose of the land
development regulations because the historic character of the building will be preserved.
The variance will not be injurious to the area involved as no units will be added to the
historic building.

7. The granting of this request is consistent with the comprehensive plan and does not
reduce the levels of service as set forth in the plan.

The requested variance for the proposed project and the project itself is consistent with the
comprehensive plan and does not reduce the level of service for any public facility.

We submit that the proposed project will preserve and enhance the historic building, and
respectfully request your favorable review. Please do not hesitate to contact me should you have
any questions related to this matter. Thank you for your consideration.

cc: Deborah Tackett
Michael Belush
Irina Villegas
Jake Seiberling



CITY OF MIAMI BEACH 

CERTIFICATE OF USE, ANNUAL FIRE FEE, AND BUSINESS TAX RECEIPT

Beginning:

RECEIPT  NUMBER:

1700 Convention Center Drive

Miami Beach, Florida  33139-1819

TRADE NAME: BAYPOINT OFFICE TOWER INC

IN CARE OF:

ADDRESS:

RL-03001501

Expires:

Parcel No: 0232260011840

FRANCISCO MARTINEZ

180 ISLAND DR

KEY BISCAYNE, FL 33149-2410

TRADE ADDRESS: 3865 INDIAN CREEK DRA penalty is imposed for failure to keep this Business Tax Receipt 

exhibited conspicuously at your place of business.

A certificate of Use / Business Tax Receipt issued under this article 

does not waive or supersede other City laws, does not constitute City 

approval of a particular business activity and does not excuse the 

licensee from all other laws applicable to the licensee's business.

This Receipt may be transferred:

A. Within 30 days of a bonafide sale, otherwise a complete annual 

payment is due.

B. To another location within the City if proper approvals and the 

Receipt are obtained prior to the opening of the new location.

Additional Information

Storage Locations

CERTIFICATE OF USE 200

PREVIOUS BALANCE $ 0.00

C_U # OF UNITS 35

# OF HOTEL ROOMS 5

# OF APARTMENT ROOMS 30

Code Certificate of Use/Occupation

000900 APARTMENT ROOMS

009500 HOTELS (SMOKE DETECTOR)

10/01/2012

09/30/2013
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FROM: CITY OF MIAMI BEACH
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 MIAMI BEACH, FL 33139-1819
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MIAMI BEACH, FL

PERMIT No 1525

180 ISLAND DR

KEY BISCAYNE, FL 33149-2410
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HOTEL VENECIA
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